
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor/Chair 

 
James L. Armstrong 

City Administrator/ 
Executive Director Bendy White 

Mayor Pro Tempore/Vice Chair 
Grant House 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Stephen P. Wiley 
City Attorney/Agency Counsel 

Dale Francisco 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Frank Hotchkiss 
Randy Rowse 
Michael Self 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 
DECEMBER 13, 2011 

AGENDA 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council and Redevelopment Agency meetings begin at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the 
Council/Redevelopment Agency after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s 
Office located at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular Council/Redevelopment Agency meeting, 
and at the beginning of each special Council/Redevelopment Agency meeting, any member of the public may address them 
concerning any item not on the Council/Redevelopment Agency agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should 
first complete and deliver a “Request to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the 
Council/Redevelopment Agency.  Should Council/Redevelopment Agency business continue into the evening session of a 
regular Council/Redevelopment Agency meeting at 6:00 p.m., the Council/Redevelopment Agency will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The Council/Redevelopment Agency, 
upon majority vote, may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or 
Council/Redevelopment Agency regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should 
first complete and deliver a “Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance 
Committee or Council/Redevelopment Agency. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the 
Council/ Redevelopment Agency.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the Council/Redevelopment Agency 
upon request of a Council/Agency Member, City staff, or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be 
approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your 
“Request to Speak” form, you should come forward to speak at the time the Council/Redevelopment Agency considers the 
Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to gain access to, comment at, or participate in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator's Office at 
564-5305 or inquire at the City Clerk's Office on the day of the meeting.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements in most cases. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV Channel 18, 
and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in Spanish on 
Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check the City TV 
program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for any changes 
to the replay schedule. 

http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 

12/13/2011 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 1 

 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

 12:30 p.m. - Finance Committee Meeting, David Gebhard Public Meeting Room, 
   630 Garden Street 
 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting 
 2:00 p.m. - Redevelopment Agency Meeting 
 
 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING S 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 12:30 P.M. IN THE DAVID GEBHARD PUBLIC 
MEETING ROOM, 630 GARDEN STREET (120.03)  

1. Subject:  Redevelopment Agency 2011 Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report 

Recommendation:  That the Finance Committee recommend that the Council 
and Agency Board: 
A. Approve the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year 

ended June 30, 2011, consisting of the Auditor's Opinion and Financial 
Statements, and the Auditor's Compliance Report; and  

B. Direct staff to submit required copies of the Report to the California State 
Controller's Office. 

  (See Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Item No. 10) 
 
 

2. Subject:  Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) For The Fiscal 
Year Ended June 30, 2011 
 
Recommendation:  That the Finance Committee recommend that Council: 
A. Receive a report from staff on the Comprehensive Annual Financial 

Report for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2011; and 
B. Accept the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year 

ended June 30, 2011. 
  (See Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Item No. 15) 



 

12/13/2011 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 2 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
REGULAR REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 

AFTERNOON  SE SSION 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

CITY COUNCIL 

1. Subject:  Redevelopment Agency Continuation Ordinance (620.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 

Santa Barbara, to Take Effect Only if Assembly Bills 1X 26 and 27 are 
Upheld and the Stay is Lifted, to Make Remittances, Under Protest, 
Required by AB 1X 27 in Order to Avoid Dissolution of the Redevelopment 
Agency of the City of Santa Barbara; and 

B. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance 
of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara, to Take Effect Only if 
Assembly Bills 1X 26 and 27 are Upheld and the Stay is Lifted, 
Determining that it Will Comply, Under Protest, with the Voluntary 
Alternative Redevelopment Program Pursuant to Part 1.9 of Division 24 of 
the California Health and Safety Code in Order to Permit the Continued 
Existence and Operation of the Redevelopment Agency of the City of 
Santa Barbara. 

 
2. Subject:  Adoption Of An Ordinance For A Lease With Sushi Go Go (330.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving a Five-Year Lease 
Agreement with One Five-Year Option with Kyung and Sarah Wang, Doing 
Business as Sushi Go Go, for the Restaurant at 119-B Harbor Way, Effective 
January 13, 2012. 



 

12/13/2011 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

CITY COUNCIL (CONT’D) 

3. Subject:  Contract with InterVISTAS Consulting, LLC, for Air Service 
Development (560.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Airport Director to execute a 
contract with InterVISTAS Consulting, LLC, for specialized air service 
development support for the Santa Barbara Airport, in an amount not to exceed 
$80,000. 
  

4. Subject:  Wetland Mitigation Monitoring Year 6 Contract (560.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve and authorize the Airport Director to 
execute a professional services contract with URS Corporation for post-
construction biological monitoring associated with the Airfield Safety Projects and 
other small projects at the Santa Barbara Airport in an amount not to exceed 
$60,852, and authorize the Airport Director to approve expenditures up to $6,085 
for extra services that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work. 
  

5. Subject:  Purchase Order With Cardno ENTRIX To Provide Biological 
Services For The Andrée Clark Bird Refuge Vegetation Maintenance And 
Restoration Project (570.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the General Services Manager to 
increase a purchase order with Cardno ENTRIX by $21,191, for a total cost of 
$39,328, to provide biological consulting services for the construction and 
restoration phase of the Andrée Clark Bird Refuge Vegetation Maintenance and 
Restoration Project. 
  

6. Subject:  Contract For Final Design Services For The Lower Mesa Lane 
Stairs Replacement Project (570.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
City Professional Services contract with Bengal Engineering in the amount of 
$52,398.30 for final design services for the Lower Mesa Lane Stairs 
Replacement Project, and authorize the Public Works Director to approve 
expenditures of up to $5,240 for extra services that may result from necessary 
changes in the scope of work. 
  



 

12/13/2011 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 4 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

CITY COUNCIL (CONT’D) 

7. Subject:  Contract For Design Of Zone 5 Pavement Maintenance Project 
(530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
City Professional Services contract with Flowers & Associates in the amount of 
$80,479 for design services for the Zone 5 Pavement Maintenance Project, and 
authorize the Public Works Director to approve expenditures of up to $8,048 for 
extra services of Flowers & Associates that may result from necessary changes 
in the scope of work. 
  

8. Subject:  Response To Grand Jury Report Regarding Patrol Vehicle 
Cameras (150.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council review and approve a draft letter in response to 
the findings and recommendations of the 2011-2012 Santa Barbara County Civil 
Grand Jury entitled, "Grand Jury Endorses Patrol Vehicle Cameras." 
  

9. Subject:  November 2011 Investment Report (260.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council accept the November 2011 Investment Report. 
  

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

10. Subject:  Redevelopment Agency 2011 Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report (620.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council and the Redevelopment Agency Board: 
A. Approve the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year 

ended June 30, 2011, consisting of the Auditor's Opinion and Financial 
Statements, and the Auditor's Compliance Report; and 

B. Direct staff to submit required copies of the Report to the California State 
Controller's Office. 

 
 
NOTICES 

11. The City Clerk has on Thursday, December 8, 2011, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 



 

12/13/2011 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 5 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

CITY COUNCIL (CONT’D) 

12. Cancellation of the regular City Council and Redevelopment Agency meetings of 
December 20, 2011, the regular City Council meeting of December 27, 2011, and 
of the regular City Council and Redevelopment Agency meetings of January 3, 
2012. 

13. Received a letter of resignation from Neighborhood Advisory Council Member 
Raquel Vela Mendoza; the vacancies will be part of the next City Advisory Group 
recruitment. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 
 
 
REPORT FROM THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

14. Subject:  Adoption Of Updated Design Review General Guidelines And 
Meeting Procedures For Design Review Boards (640.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara to Approve Revised General Design 
Guidelines and Meeting Procedures for the Historic Landmarks Commission, 
Architectural Board of Review, and Single Family Design Board. 
  

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

15. Subject:  Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) For The Fiscal 
Year Ended June 30, 2011 (250.02) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Receive a report from staff on the Comprehensive Annual Financial 

Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011; and 
B. Accept the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year 

ended June 30, 2011. 



 

12/13/2011 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 6 

 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS (CONT’D) 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT (CONT’D) 
 
16. Subject:  Zone One Solid Waste Franchise Recommendation (510.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Finance Director to enter into 
exclusive negotiations with MarBorg Industries for a Citywide Solid Waste 
Franchise Agreement contingent on MarBorg's written agreement, in a form 
acceptable to the City Attorney, to do the following: 
A. Provide the City with an option to extend the term of the current franchise 

agreement for an additional year should agreement not be reached before 
June 30, 2012;  

B. Provide a deposit to cover the City's costs for HF&H's consultant services 
related to the franchise renewal process; and  

C. Provide City staff with access to all available financial information about 
the City's franchise zones, including, but not limited to, MarBorg's 
operations, revenues, costs, and profits. 

 
 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

17. Subject:  Annual Water Supply Management Report (540.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve and adopt the City of Santa Barbara's 
Water Supply Management Report for the 2011 water year, finding that 
groundwater resources are in long-term balance in accordance with the 
conjunctive management element of the City's Long-Term Water Supply Plan. 
  

MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 

18. Subject:  Appointments To City Advisory Groups (140.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council make appointments to the City's advisory 
groups. 
  

COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 



 

12/13/2011 Santa Barbara City Council/Redevelopment Agency Agenda Page 7 

 
CLOSED SESSIONS 

19. Subject:  Conference with Legal Counsel - Pending Litigation (160.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (a) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code 
and take appropriate action as needed.  The pending litigation is Santa Barbara 
Channelkeeper v. City of Santa Barbara, USDC Case No. CV-1103624 JHN 
(AGRx). 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 
  

ADJOURNMENT 





















































sking
Text Box





 

 
ATTACHMENT 

 
December 13, 2011 
 
The Honorable Brian Hill 
Presiding Judge, Superior Court 
312 M East Cook Street 
Santa Maria, CA 93455-5165 
 
Santa Barbara County Grand Jury 
Attention:  Foreperson Ted Sten 
1100 Anacapa Street 
Santa Barbara, CA 93101 
 
Honorable Judge Hill & Grand Jury Foreperson Ted Sten: 
 
This letter is in response to the Civil Grand Jury’s letter to the Mayor dated 
October 4, 2011, requesting a response to its 2011-2012 report entitled “Grand 
Jury Endorses Patrol Vehicle Cameras.”  The response is provided pursuant to 
the requirements of State Penal Code Section 933.05. 
 
Attached are the responses to the findings and recommendations in the Grand 
Jury Report as approved by the Santa Barbara City Council on December 13, 
2011.   
 
Please contact me, City Attorney Stephen Wiley or Chief of Police Cam 
Sanchez, if you have any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Jim Armstrong  
City Administrator  
 
Attachment 
 
cc: Joni Gray, Chair, Santa Barbara County Board of Supervisors 
       Mayor and City Councilmembers  
       Stephen P. Wiley, City Attorney 
       Marcelo Lopez, Assistant City Administrator 
 Cam Sanchez, Police Chief 
 Cyndi Rodriguez, City Clerk Services Manager 

 
 
 

Response to the Report of the 2011-2012 Santa Barbara County Civil Grand Jury 
Report Entitled “Grant Jury Endorses Patrol Vehicle Cameras.” 

 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 



 
Finding 1 
 
“All County law enforcement agencies except the Police Departments of the City of 
Santa Barbara and the City of Guadalupe have currently installed audio/visual technology 
in their patrol vehicles.” 
 
Response: 
 
We concur that the Santa Barbara Police Department does not have an audio/visual 
technology installed in all of our patrol vehicles.   
 
Finding 2 
 
“Citing costs, the Police Departments of the Cities of Santa Barbara and Guadalupe 
currently do not have audio/video technology installed in their patrol vehicles.” 
 
Response: 
 
We concur that the cost has been a prohibitive factor in the acquisition of audio/visual 
technology for our patrol vehicles.  This cost is estimated at $250,000-$300,000 to install 
audio/visual technology in the patrol fleet.  In addition, the Police Department has 
allocated personnel resources to several major projects which were urgent priorities.  For 
example in 2007, the Police Department embarked upon a 6 year project for the complete 
modernization and replacement of the Records Management System, Computer Aided 
Dispatch System, Mobile Data Terminal Computers, and the Mobile Report Entry 
System.  During the installation phase, this project required the full attention of the entire 
Information Technology staff.   The Information Technology Staff is now prepared to 
devote their attention towards the acquisition and installation of audio/visual technology 
for Santa Barbara Police Department patrol vehicles.   
 
Recommendation 1 
 
“That the Police Departments of the Cities of Santa Barbara and Guadalupe immediately 
seek out funding sources to provide current audio/visual technology for all of their patrol 
vehicles.” 
 
Response: 
 
The Police Department will continue to monitor current and future funding sources to 
include State and Federal grants, donations from local non-profit organizations, and 
potential Homeland Security funding options. 
 
 
 
Recommendation 2 
 
“That the Police Departments of the Cities of Santa Barbara and Guadalupe immediately 
request that their respective City Councils provide any necessary supplemental funds to 
obtain and install current audio/visual technology for all of their patrol vehicles.” 
 



Response: 
 
The City of Santa Barbara budget process has just begun.  Funding options will be 
explored during the budget deliberations for Fiscal Year 2013. 
 
Recommendation 3 
 
“That the Police Departments of the Cities of Santa Barbara and Guadalupe install 
current audio/visual technology for all of their patrol vehicles.” 
 
Response: 
 
To date, the Santa Barbara Police Department has reviewed seven vendors for 
audio/visual technology and has contacted every agency in Santa Barbara County who 
has this technology.  We have installed two separate pilot projects to field test this 
technology and will continue to work with additional vendors to determine recommended 
features and capabilities of these systems.  The Santa Barbara Police Department is 
prepared to move forward with this project once funding is secured.   
 

 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  260.02 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: December 13, 2011 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Treasury Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: November 2011 Investment Report 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council accept the November 2011 Investment Report. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The attached investment report includes Investment Activity, Interest Revenue, a 
Summary of Cash and Investments, and Investment Portfolio detail as of November 30, 
2011.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: November 2011 Investment Report 
 
PREPARED BY: Jill Taura, Treasury Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 



 
INVESTMENT ACTIVITY INTEREST REVENUE

PURCHASES OR DEPOSITS POOLED INVESTMENTS

 11/9 Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) 2,000,000$         Interest Earned on Investments 255,733$    
11/9 Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (FHLMC) 2,000,000 Amortization (19,844)

11/18 Montecito Bank & Trust CD (MBTCD) 2,000,000 Interest on SBB&T Accounts 363
11/28 LAIF Deposit - City 2,000,000 Total 236,253$    
11/30 LAIF Deposit - City 3,000,000

Total 11,000,000$       

SALES, MATURITIES, CALLS OR WITHDRAWALS

 11/2 LAIF Withdrawal - City (2,500,000)$       
11/8 LAIF Withdrawal - City (3,500,000)
11/8 Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) - Call (2,000,000)

11/14 LAIF Withdrawal - City (2,000,000)
11/17 LAIF Withdra al Cit (2 000 000)

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Activity and Interest Report

November 30, 2011

11/17 LAIF Withdrawal - City (2,000,000)
11/18 Montecito Bank & Trust CD (MBTCD) - Maturity (2,000,000)
11/23 Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp (FHLMC) - Call (2,000,000)

Total (16,000,000)$     

ACTIVITY TOTAL (5,000,000)$       TOTAL INTEREST EARNED 236,253$    

A
ttachm

ent

1



ENDING BALANCE AS OF OCTOBER 31, 2011
 Yield to Percent Average

Book Maturity of Days to
Description Value  (365 days) Portfolio Maturity

State of California LAIF 39,000,000$         0.385% 23.19% 1
Certificates of Deposit 2,000,000 1.750% 1.19% 17
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 109,005,345 1.917% 64.80% 1,117
Corporate/Medium Term Notes 12,242,497 1.779% 7.28% 1,300

162,247,842         1.536% 96.46% 849

SB Airport Promissory Note 5,962,504 7.000% 3.54% 6,451
Totals and Averages 168,210,346$       1.730% 100.00% 1,048

SBB&T Money Market Account 1,348,739
Total Cash and Investments 169,559,085$      

  
  
NET CASH AND INVESTMENT ACTIVITY FOR NOVEMBER 2011 1,193,643$               
 

 
ENDING BALANCE AS OF NOVEMBER 30 2011

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Summary of Cash and Investments

November 30, 2011

ENDING BALANCE AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2011
 Yield to Percent Average

Book Maturity of Days to
Description Value  (365 days) Portfolio Maturity

State of California LAIF 34,000,000$         0.385% 20.83% 1 (1)
Certificates of Deposit 2,000,000 0.800% 1.23% 718
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 108,992,923 1.921% 66.79% 1,101
Corporate/Medium Term Notes 12,234,575 1.780% 7.50% 1,270

157,227,499         1.564% 96.35% 871

SB Airport Promissory Note 5,962,504 7.000% 3.65% 6,421
Totals and Averages 163,190,003$       1.762% 100.00% 1,074

SBB&T Money Market Account 7,562,726
Total Cash and Investments 170,752,729$      

  

Note:  
(1) The average life of the LAIF portfolio as of November 30, 2011 is 220 days.

2



 PURCHASE MATURITY STATED YIELD AT FACE BOOK MARKET BOOK  
DESCRIPTION DATE DATE MOODY'S S & P RATE 365 VALUE VALUE VALUE GAIN/(LOSS) COMMENTS

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUNDS

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND - - - - 0.385 0.385 34,000,000.00 34,000,000.00 34,000,000.00 0.00  

LOCAL AGENCY INV FUND/RDA - - - - 0.385 0.385 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00  

     Subtotal, LAIF      34,000,000.00 34,000,000.00 34,000,000.00 0.00

CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

MONTECITO BANK & TRUST 11/18/11 11/18/13 - - 0.800 0.800 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00  

     Subtotal, Certificates of deposit     2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.00

FEDERAL AGENCY ISSUES - COUPON  
FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 03/06/09 04/24/12 Aaa AA+ 2.250 2.120 2,000,000.00 2,000,996.44 2,016,880.00 15,883.56  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 12/10/10 12/08/14 Aaa AA+ 1.500 1.662 2,000,000.00 1,999,755.59 2,000,340.00 584.41 Callable 12/08/11, then cont.

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 02/02/11 02/02/15 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00 1,503,105.00 3,105.00 Callable 02/02/12, then cont.

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 02/10/11 02/10/14 Aaa AA+ 1.375 1.375 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,039,660.00 39,660.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 03/09/11 03/09/16 Aaa AA+ 2.600 2.621 2,000,000.00 1,999,455.56 2,013,420.00 13,964.44 Callable 03/09/12, then cont.

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 12/15/10 12/15/15 Aaa AA+ 2.480 2.480 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,001,620.00 1,620.00 Callable 12/15/11, then cont.

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 03/04/09 01/17/12 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.002 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,004,860.00 4,860.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 03/05/09 03/04/13 Aaa AA+ 2.600 2.600 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,058,080.00 58,080.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 05/08/09 04/08/13 Aaa AA+ 2.200 2.200 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,051,220.00 51,220.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 06/19/09 06/18/12 Aaa AA+ 2.125 2.125 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,021,000.00 21,000.00  

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 04/30/10 04/09/15 Aaa AA+ 2.900 2.916 2,000,000.00 1,999,721.66 2,013,120.00 13,398.34 Callable 04/09/12, once

C 11/23/10 11/23/15 A AA 2 000 2 000 2 000 000 00 2 000 000 00 2 015 160 00 15 160 00 C / /

QUALITY RATING

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Investment Portfolio

November 30, 2011

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 11/23/10 11/23/15 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,015,160.00 15,160.00 Callable 05/23/12, then cont.

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 02/16/11 02/16/16 Aaa AA+ 2.570 2.570 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,123,560.00 123,560.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 06/30/11 06/30/16 Aaa AA+ 1.300 2.297 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,001,560.00 1,560.00 SU 3% Callable 12/30/11, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 03/04/09 06/08/12 Aaa AA+ 4.375 2.110 1,700,000.00 1,719,222.93 1,737,111.00 17,888.07  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 04/15/10 10/15/13 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,059,540.00 59,540.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 08/05/10 09/12/14 Aaa AA+ 1.375 1.375 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,042,260.00 42,260.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 09/17/09 12/13/13 Aaa AA+ 3.125 2.440 2,000,000.00 2,026,289.76 2,100,500.00 74,210.24  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 01/15/10 10/30/12 Aaa AA+ 1.700 1.700 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,026,740.00 26,740.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 04/05/10 11/29/13 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,062,520.00 62,520.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 06/29/10 10/29/12 Aaa AA+ 1.125 1.125 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,016,200.00 16,200.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 05/28/10 05/28/15 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.653 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,030,960.00 30,960.00 SU 3.35%, Callable 11/28/12, once

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 06/30/10 06/30/14 Aaa AA+ 1.125 2.277 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,600.00 600.00 SU 3% Callable 12/30/11, once

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 09/26/11 08/28/13 Aaa AA+ 1.000 0.381 1,000,000.00 1,010,736.92 1,010,730.00 (6.92)  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 09/17/09 09/13/13 Aaa AA+ 4.375 2.272 2,000,000.00 2,071,317.44 2,141,620.00 70,302.56  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 02/22/10 12/13/13 Aaa AA+ 3.125 2.130 2,000,000.00 2,038,644.90 2,100,500.00 61,855.10  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 03/26/10 06/08/12 Aaa AA+ 1.375 1.325 2,000,000.00 2,000,510.00 2,012,520.00 12,010.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 02/09/11 01/29/15 Aaa AA+ 1.750 1.750 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,065,460.00 65,460.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 04/15/11 05/27/15 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,083,000.00 83,000.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 09/26/11 10/30/13 Aaa AA+ 2.000 0.400 1,500,000.00 1,545,698.79 1,545,435.00 (263.79)  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 10/19/11 10/19/16 Aaa AA+ 1.500 1.500 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,002,620.00 2,620.00 Callable 07/19/12, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 09/03/09 09/21/12 Aaa AA+ 2.125 1.699 2,000,000.00 2,006,655.74 2,031,220.00 24,564.26  

3



 PURCHASE MATURITY STATED YIELD AT FACE BOOK MARKET BOOK  
DESCRIPTION DATE DATE MOODY'S S & P RATE 365 VALUE VALUE VALUE GAIN/(LOSS) COMMENTS

QUALITY RATING

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Investment Portfolio

November 30, 2011

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 01/06/11 02/25/14 Aaa AA+ 1.375 1.375 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,032,860.00 32,860.00  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 11/09/11 11/09/16 Aaa AA+ 1.800 1.800 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,008,500.00 8,500.00 Callable 05/09/12, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 09/27/11 09/27/16 Aaa AA+ 1.550 1.550 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,998,740.00 (1,260.00) Callable 12/27/11, then qtrly

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 09/28/11 09/28/16 Aaa AA+ 1.400 1.400 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,997,460.00 (2,540.00) Callable 09/28/12, once

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 06/09/09 08/17/12 Aaa AA+ 1.000 2.420 2,000,000.00 1,980,670.66 2,009,720.00 29,049.34  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 03/26/10 04/25/12 Aaa AA+ 1.125 1.197 1,000,000.00 999,715.46 1,004,140.00 4,424.54  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 02/11/11 04/02/14 Aaa AA+ 4.500 1.615 2,000,000.00 2,130,871.79 2,178,980.00 48,108.21  

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MTG CORP 10/03/11 10/03/16 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.612 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,996,580.00 (3,420.00) SU 2.25% Callable 04/03/12, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 09/28/11 09/28/16 Aaa AA+ 1.000 1.401 1,000,000.00 999,587.50 1,001,710.00 2,122.50 SU 1%-3%, Call 09/28/12, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 11/09/11 11/09/16 Aaa AA+ 1.500 1.807 2,000,000.00 1,999,530.56 2,007,360.00 7,829.44 SU 1.5%-3.5%, Call 11/09/12, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 02/17/11 02/17/16 Aaa AA+ 2.500 2.500 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,010,160.00 10,160.00 Callable 02/17/12, once

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 06/07/11 03/07/16 Aaa AA+ 2.075 2.075 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,016,300.00 16,300.00 Callable 06/07/12, once

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 07/05/11 07/05/16 Aaa AA+ 2.200 2.200 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,003,320.00 3,320.00 Callable 01/05/12, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 07/19/11 07/19/16 Aaa AA+ 1.900 2.106 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,002,230.00 2,230.00 SU 2%-3.5%, Call 01/19/12, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 09/28/11 09/28/16 Aaa AA+ 1.300 1.475 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,999,820.00 (180.00) SU 1.3%-2.25%, Call 03/28/12, then qtrly

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 10/28/11 10/28/16 Aaa AA+ 1.500 1.521 2,000,000.00 1,998,091.67 1,992,640.00 (5,451.67) Callable 10/28/13, once

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 08/10/10 08/10/15 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.055 2,000,000.00 1,998,201.67 2,022,620.00 24,418.33 Callable 08/10/12, once

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 11/17/10 11/17/14 Aaa AA+ 1.300 1.300 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,038,260.00 38,260.00  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 12/28/10 12/28/15 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.011 2,000,000.00 1,999,925.00 2,002,380.00 2,455.00 Callable 12/28/11, once

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 04/11/11 04/11/16 Aaa AA+ 2.500 2.500 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,015,500.00 15,500.00 Callable 04/11/12, once

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 06/27/11 06/27/16 Aaa AA+ 2 000 2 000 2 000 000 00 2 000 000 00 2 026 200 00 26 200 00 C ll bl 06/27/13FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 06/27/11 06/27/16 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,026,200.00 26,200.00 Callable 06/27/13, once

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 09/21/10 09/21/15 Aaa AA+ 2.000 2.000 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,075,080.00 75,080.00  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 12/10/10 10/26/15 Aaa AA+ 1.625 2.067 2,000,000.00 1,967,323.35 2,042,420.00 75,096.65  

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 04/18/11 04/18/16 Aaa AA+ 2.500 2.500 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,052,280.00 52,280.00 Callable 04/18/13, once

FEDERAL NATL MORTGAGE ASSN 06/29/11 12/29/14 Aaa AA+ 1.300 1.300 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,005,800.00 5,800.00 Callable 03/29/12, once

     Subtotal, Federal Agencies 108,700,000.00 108,992,923.39 110,474,181.00 1,481,257.61

CORPORATE/MEDIUM TERM NOTES

BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY FIN 12/15/10 12/15/15 Aa2 AA+ 2.450 2.530 2,000,000.00 1,993,941.67 2,057,040.00 63,098.33  

GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORP 11/10/10 11/09/15 Aa2 AA+ 2.250 2.250 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,981,100.00 (18,900.00)  

GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL CORP 01/07/11 01/07/14 Aa2 AA+ 2.100 2.100 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,012,720.00 12,720.00  

PRES & FELLOWS OF HARVARD COLL 07/12/11 01/15/14 Aaa AAA 5.000 1.000 2,000,000.00 2,167,250.85 2,186,540.00 19,289.15  

PROCTOR & GAMBLE 09/20/11 11/15/15 Aa3 AA- 1.800 1.085 2,000,000.00 2,055,150.23 2,057,500.00 2,349.77  

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT 09/26/11 09/15/16 Aa3 AA- 2.000 1.800 2,000,000.00 2,018,232.58 1,989,660.00 (28,572.58)  

     Subtotal, Corporate Securities 12,000,000.00 12,234,575.33 12,284,560.00 49,984.67

SB AIRPORT PROMISSORY NOTE (LT)

SANTA BARBARA AIRPORT 07/14/09 06/30/29 - - 7.000 7.000 5,962,504.03 5,962,504.03 5,962,504.03 0.00  

     Subtotal, SBA Note 5,962,504.03 5,962,504.03 5,962,504.03 0.00

TOTALS 162,662,504.03 163,190,002.75 164,721,245.03 1,531,242.28

Market values have been obtained from the City's safekeeping agent, Santa Barbara Bank and Trust (SBB&T).  SBB&T uses Interactive Data Pricing Service, Bloomberg and DTC.

4



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  620.03 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 JOINT COUNCIL AND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY  
 AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: December 13, 2011 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 Chairperson and Boardmembers 
 
FROM: Housing and Redevelopment Division, Community Development 

Department 
 
SUBJECT: Redevelopment Agency 2011 Comprehensive Annual Financial 

Report 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council and the Redevelopment Agency Board: 
 
A. Approve the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year ended 

June 30, 2011, consisting of the Auditor’s Opinion and Financial Statements, and 
the Auditor’s Compliance Report; and 

B. Direct staff to submit required copies of the Report to the California State 
Controller’s Office. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Pursuant to State Health and Safety Code Section 33080.1 et seq., each year the 
Redevelopment Agency of the City of Santa Barbara must submit an annual report to 
the State Controller’s Office. Prior to submission, the annual report must be presented 
to the legislative body for review and approval. The annual report must contain an 
independent financial audit conducted by a certified public accountant, a report on the 
Agency’s compliance with the laws and regulations governing the activities of the 
Agency, a report describing the Agency’s programs and projects during the previous 
fiscal year, and a description of the Agency’s housing activities in the previous fiscal 
year. 
 
In order to comply with these requirements, the annual report consists of three 
components: the State Controller’s Office Annual Report Forms; the Redevelopment 
Agency’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR); and the State Department 
of Housing and Community Development’s Redevelopment Agency Annual Report.  
 
The Redevelopment Agency’s CAFR, as reviewed by Lance, Soll, Lunghard LLP, 
Certified Public Accountants, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, outlines the 
Agency’s financial condition and compliance with State law and regulation. The 



Joint Council and Redevelopment Agency Agenda Report 
Redevelopment Agency 2011 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report  
December 13, 2011 
Page 2 

 

Redevelopment Agency received an unqualified, or “clean,” opinion on its financial 
statements, had no material weaknesses in internal controls, and was found to be in 
compliance with redevelopment agency laws and regulations. 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council and the Redevelopment Agency Board receive, 
accept, and approve the CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, and direct staff 
to submit copies of the Annual Report to the California State Controller’s Office.  
 
Note: A copy of the Redevelopment Agency’s CAFR will be provided to each 
Councilmember in advance of the meeting and is available for Councilmember review in 
the Council Reading File. The complete Annual Report package is also available for 
public review in the City Clerk’s Office and the Housing and Redevelopment Division 
Office.  
 
 
PREPARED BY: Brian J. Bosse, Housing and Redevelopment Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Assistant City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  640.02 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: December 13, 2011 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Adoption Of Updated Design Review General Guidelines And 

Meeting Procedures For Design Review Boards 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara to Approve Revised General Design Guidelines and Meeting Procedures 
for the Historic Landmarks Commission, Architectural Board of Review, and Single 
Family Design Board. 
  
DISCUSSION: 
 
Update Process 
 
The Historic Landmarks Commission (HLC), Architectural Board of Review (ABR) and 
Single Family Design Board (SFDB) each have an existing document including general 
design guidelines and meeting procedures which need to be updated.  The existing 
1995 HLC document is severely outdated and does not include the extensive 
information provided in the existing ABR and SFDB documents.  The ABR Guidelines 
were last updated in 2007.  The SFDB Guidelines were most recently updated as part of 
the Neighborhood Preservation Ordinance Update review in April 2010.  The need to 
update the HLC document resulted in the decision to simultaneously thoroughly update 
all three guideline documents.  The proposed updated documents now cover a similar 
range of topics and have consistent formats.  The guideline documents reflect the most 
recent city zoning and state law changes and current City administrative procedures. 
 
The ABR, HLC, and SFDB each reviewed an updated draft of their respective guideline 
document in 2010.  A subcommittee of the HLC worked with staff primarily on the 
administrative staff approval standards.  Staff responded to comments from the HLC, 
ABR and SFDB and incorporated revisions into final documents.  At their 2011 hearings 
(SFDB 3/28/11, ABR 4/4/11, and HLC 4/13/11), all three hearing bodies unanimously 
voted to recommend that Council adopt the updated general guidelines and meeting 
procedures.  Staff met with the landscape experts from the design review hearing 
bodies in August 2011 and received a comment that they would like ABR review to be 



Council Agenda Report 
Adoption Of Updated Design Review General Guidelines And Meeting Procedures For 
Design Review Boards 
December 13, 2011 
Page 2 

 

triggered for substantial landscape changes in publicly visible areas when there are no 
plans with landscape plans previously approved.   This suggestion is beyond the scope 
of guideline updates as it would require an amendment to Santa Barbara Municipal 
Code Chapter 22.68 and would require additional public input from affected property 
owners. Staff does not support making a change to expand purview of the review 
boards given limited City resources. 
 
Throughout the remainder of 2011, staff responded to a series of comments on the draft 
guidelines from the City Attorney’s Office.  Coordination with the City Attorney’s Office 
led to the decision to amend provisions of Chapters 15.24 and 22.11 of the Municipal 
Code.  These amendments will be presented to the Ordinance Committee in 2012. 
Accordingly, some of the references to the Municipal Code in the ABR, HLC and SFDB 
Guidelines have been generalized in order to be consistent with planned code revision 
proposals.  
 
Summary of Changes 
 
Areas where substantial changes were made to the existing ABR and SFDB documents 
have been formatted with gray shading.  The HLC document is essentially “new” and so 
shading is not indicated in that document. 
 
General 
 

• The documents were all renamed to have similar titles, for example “HLC 
General Guidelines and Meeting Procedures”.  The word “rules” was intentionally 
omitted from the new title, as usually rules are associated with standards found in 
the Municipal Code. 
 

• Edits were made to the goals section to address the topic of landscaping.   
 

• A new goal was added which reads:  “to ensure that the review process is fair 
and consistent both in policy and implementation to allow all who are involved to 
benefit from the process”.  
 

• The documents do not have illustrations due to budget constraints.  Staff plans to 
provide an on-line photo library of completed project buildings and architectural 
details.  The photos will serve as good examples that are consistent with 
guidelines in the documents.  The library will be similar in concept to the El 
Pueblo Viejo District Design Guidelines on-line photo library. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Adoption Of Updated Design Review General Guidelines And Meeting Procedures For 
Design Review Boards 
December 13, 2011 
Page 3 

 

Part I:  Architectural Design Guidelines 
 

• Relationship of the guideline documents to the general plan and descriptions of 
other design guidelines updated. 
 

• “Green building” phrase replaced with “sustainable building and site design”. 
 

• “Administrative Staff Review Standards” revised, especially in response to HLC 
comments.  New consideration for structures of potential historic significance was 
added. Revisions were made to approval criteria for door alteration, chimney, 
lighting, trellis, wall, fence, tree removal, and minor additions.  Also, some project 
category types were removed from administrative staff review purview:  
manufactured homes, trash enclosures and all commercial and multi-family 
porches subject to HLC review.  In general, HLC administrative staff review 
standards for commercial and multi-family projects are the most stringent. 

 
• New definitions added: “publicly visible” and “highly visible to the public”. 

 
• Cost consideration language for affordable housing projects made consistent in 

HLC and ABR documents. 
 

• Procedures for zoning modification comments clarified. 
 
Part II:  Landscape Design Guidelines 
 

• Changes were made to implement recent amendments to the Municipal Code 
regarding tree removals and landscape maintenance requirements. 
 

• Landscape plan exemptions and landscape architect licensing requirements 
clarified for consistency with the California State Business and Professions Code.   

 
• New tree root barrier guideline included in the plans. 

 
• High fire hazard area landscape design guideline term “vegetation modification 

zone” replaced with “defensible space.” 
 
Part III:  Meeting Procedures 
 

• Website agenda and minutes posting timing information revised. 
 

• Agenda organization clarified (e.g. announcements and subcommittee reports).  
 

• Jurisdiction and findings information revised. 



Council Agenda Report 
Adoption Of Updated Design Review General Guidelines And Meeting Procedures For 
Design Review Boards 
December 13, 2011 
Page 4 

 

• Quorum, abstention on continued items, reconsideration, project denial, Brown 
Act meeting and chair election procedures clarified. 

 
• Member compensation information updated for consistency in each document.  

Note: Due to budget constraints, currently members receive no compensation. 
 

• More comprehensive visual aid option descriptions, including story poles, added 
to HLC document. 

 
• Revised documents reflect recent ordinance changes involving: preliminary 

approval time extension procedures, approval time limits, “project design 
approval” language, and compatibility review criteria. 

 
• Recent changes to plan check procedures included. 

 
NOTE:  Copies of the General Design Guidelines & Meeting Procedures documents for 
the HLC, ABR, and SFDB have been provided to the Mayor and Council and are 
available for public viewing at the City Clerk’s office.  For comparison, the existing 
guideline documents to be updated are available on-line at:  
www.santabarbaraca.gov/Resident/Home/Guidelines/  
 
PREPARED BY: Heather Baker, AICP, Project Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Community Development Director  
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office  

http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/Resident/Home/Guidelines/


1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA TO APPROVE REVISED GENERAL 
DESIGN GUIDELINES AND MEETING PROCEDURES 
FOR THE HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION, 
ARCHITECTURAL BOARD OF REVIEW, AND SINGLE 
FAMILY DESIGN BOARD 

 
WHEREAS, maintaining aesthetic beauty and compatibility within City neighborhoods is 
an important goal; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara implemented recent Municipal Code Ordinance 
Amendments that changed time periods for development approval validity;  
 
WHEREAS, it is essential for the Historic Landmarks Commission (HLC), Architectural 
Board of Review (ABR), and Single Family Design Review Board (SFDB) and public to 
refer to Guidelines during project reviews to ensure compatible and aesthetically 
appropriate design and development; 
 
WHEREAS, it is important that the City’s Design Review hearing bodies have current 
meeting procedures for effective and efficient project revisions;  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara determined that the “HLC Rules and Procedures”, 
ABR Guidelines and SFDB Guidelines were in need of update; 
 
WHEREAS, Staff worked with a subcommittee of the HLC on specific guideline changes 
and also worked with the ABR and SFDB;  
 
WHEREAS, Staff has prepared updated and formatted General Design Guidelines and 
meeting procedures for the HLC, ABR and SFDB; 
 
WHEREAS, the HLC, ABR and SFDB reviewed proposed revisions in 2010 and 2011 and 
all recommend the proposed changes be adopted by Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, under the provisions of Article 19, Section 15308 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines; the adoption of updated Guidelines for the 
Architectural Board of Review, Historic Landmarks Commission and Single Family Design 
Board has been determined by Staff to Qualify for a Categorical Exemption.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA THAT: 
 
The revised General Design Guidelines and Meeting Procedures for the Historic 
Landmarks Commission, Architectural Board of Review,  and the Single Family Design 
Board, attached hereto as Exhibits A, Exhibit B, and Exhibit C respectively, are hereby 
adopted.    









































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  250.02 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  December 13, 2011 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Accounting Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) For The Fiscal Year 

Ended June 30, 2011 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Receive a report from staff on the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for 

the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2011; and 
B. Accept the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year ended 

June 30, 2011. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Pursuant to City Charter, Finance Department staff has prepared the City’s annual 
financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.  Each year, financial 
statements are prepared to report on the financial condition of the City as a whole, as well 
as individual funds/operations that are included within the City’s operations.  
 
While only certain financial statements and schedules are required by both state law and 
the City Charter, the basic financial statements have been expanded to include other 
required information and elements needed to be considered for an award for excellence in 
financial reporting from the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA),  which 
recognizes the highest standards of financial reporting. As such, the expanded financial 
statements and other information included in the report are collectively referred to as a 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (“CAFR”). In addition to allowing the CAFR to be 
considered for the GFOA award for financial reporting, the financial statements are 
expanded to enable the community and other interested parties to obtain a better and 
more complete understanding of the City’s finances and operations. 
 
The financial statements were audited by the independent public accounting firm of Lance, 
Soll & Lunghard, LLP (LSL), whose unqualified opinion is included within the financial 
section of the report.  An unqualified opinion indicates that the financial statements present 
fairly the financial position of the City of Santa Barbara as of June 30, 2011, and the 
results of operations, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  As part 
of the audit, LSL also reviewed and performed tests of the City’s internal accounting 



Council Agenda Report 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 
December 13, 2011 
Page 2 

 

control procedures to determine if there are any material weaknesses or instances of non-
compliance.  Based on the audit, no instances of non-compliance or material weaknesses 
were noted.  
 
The primary purpose of the CAFR is to allow readers to assess the financial condition of 
the City at the end of each year, and demonstrate whether its financial condition has 
improved or deteriorated in relation to the prior year.  Starting in fiscal year 2002, the City 
implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 34 (GASB 
34), which dramatically changed the reporting requirements of governments nationwide. 
One of the key changes was the addition of entity-wide reporting. Previously, the level of 
financial reporting was at the fund level. In contrast, the entity-wide statements consolidate 
all City funds and operations into two major categories and require the use of accrual 
accounting. These changes are designed to align government accounting and reporting to 
the private sector and, thus, allow readers to better assess the financial health of a 
government.    
 
The CAFR is divided into three major sections: the introductory section, the financial 
section, and the statistical section.  The introductory section includes the letter of 
transmittal, a directory of City officials, and an organizational chart.  The financial section 
includes the independent auditors’ report (as noted above), management’s discussion and 
analysis (MD&A), and the financial statements, including notes.  The statistical section 
includes financial trend information as well as demographic information about the City. 
 
Staff will present the CAFR to the Finance Committee just prior to the Council’s afternoon 
session.  A representative from LSL  will be present to provide the Finance Committee and 
Council with a summary of the audit and the results thereof. 
 
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
2011 is available for review in the City Clerk’s Office and the Finance Department.  An 
electronic version of the CAFR will be available on the internet at 
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/Government/Finance/ no later than December 16, 2011.  
  
 
PREPARED BY: Ruby Carrillo, Accounting Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 

http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/Government/Finance/


Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  510.04 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: December 13, 2011 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Environmental Services, Finance 
 
SUBJECT: Zone One Solid Waste Franchise Recommendation 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the Finance Director to enter into exclusive negotiations with 
MarBorg Industries for a Citywide Solid Waste Franchise Agreement contingent on 
MarBorg’s written agreement, in a form acceptable to the City attorney, to do the following:  
A. Provide the City with an option to extend the term of the current franchise 

agreement for an additional year should agreement not be reached before June 30, 
2012;  

B. Provide a deposit to cover the City’s costs for HF&H’s consultant services related to 
the franchise renewal process; and  

C. Provide City staff with access to all available financial information about the City’s 
franchise zones, including, but not limited to, MarBorg’s operations, revenues, 
costs, and profits. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
In November of 2010, the City first initiated a competitive procurement process for the 
selection of a solid waste collection contractor for Zone One for which the existing contract 
expires on June 7, 2013.  After initiating and completing work towards the issuance of an 
RFP, on July 12, 2011 Council invited MarBorg Industries (“MarBorg”) to submit a 
preliminary proposal and directed staff to work with the consultant and the newly created 
Zone One Solid Waste Franchise Council Ad Hoc Subcommittee to evaluate the proposal. 
The objective of the evaluation was to determine whether or not the City should continue 
to move forward with an open competitive procurement process for Zone One.   
 
MarBorg’s proposal, received on September 12, 2011, was evaluated by staff and HF&H 
Consultants over the ensuing 2 ½ months. Based on that review, City staff and the 
consultant believe that the proposal represents a good starting point from which to begin 
negotiations, but one which can and should be improved upon.  As such, staff and the 
Zone One Solid Waste Franchise Ad Hoc Subcommittee recommend suspending the 
public competitive procurement process and entering into exclusive negotiations with 



Council Agenda Report 
Zone One Solid Waste Franchise Recommendation  
December 13, 2011 
Page 2 

 

MarBorg for a Citywide franchise agreement, subject to stipulated conditions, with the goal 
of achieving the best franchise terms possible for City residents and businesses.   
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Since 2003, the City has had two “zones” for solid waste collection and disposal in the 
business, multi-family residential, and single family residential sectors, each zone 
representing approximately half of the City.  These are the two largest contracts the City 
has with a private company.  Collectively, these contracts are worth almost $16 million 
per year to the hauler(s).  The cost of these services is funded entirely through the solid 
waste rates that the City charges to its residents and businesses.   
 
On November 23, 2010, staff recommended beginning a competitive procurement 
process (via a Request for Proposals, or “RFP”) for collection services in Zone One 
because the City’s franchise contract with Allied Waste Services of North America, LLC 
(“Allied”) was set to expire on June 7, 2013.  Only Zone One was to be included in this 
process because MarBorg, the hauler for solid waste Zone Two, has two 5-year options 
in its franchise which allow it to continue Zone Two services until June 2023.   
 
Subsequently, Allied agreed to sell its Santa Barbara interests to MarBorg.  On July 12, 
2011, Council approved the assignment of the Zone One agreement to MarBorg, 
consolidating the City’s solid waste operations under one hauler.  At that time, Council 
also invited MarBorg to submit a preliminary proposal for Zone One, within 60 days, for 
evaluation as an alternative to engaging in an open competitive process.  
 
Council awarded a professional services contract to HF&H Consultants, LLC (HF&H) in 
the amount of $120,200 for assistance in the competitive procurement process in May 
2011. With the receipt of MarBorg’s proposal in September 2011, City staff and HF&H 
shifted their primary efforts to evaluating the proposal. The results of the analysis are 
discussed below. 
 
Proposal 
 
MarBorg has proposed service and rate changes for both zones, consolidating them 
into a single franchise.  Absent specifications that would normally be provided by the 
City in an RFP process, MarBorg was free to propose significant changes to rate 
structure and policy that were not suggested by City staff or Council.  MarBorg also 
included an alternate proposal to assume customer billing responsibility, but since this 
would result in a loss of $820,000 to the General Fund, our analysis focused on the 
base proposal.  A summary of the proposal is included as Attachment 1. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Zone One Solid Waste Franchise Recommendation  
December 13, 2011 
Page 3 

 

HF&H Findings 
 
HF&H has presented the following summary findings to the City. 
 

 Reasonableness of Service Changes Proposed:  
 
 The proposal includes most of the major service components of a franchise 

agreement under current industry standards.   
 

 Implications of Proposed Rate Restructuring:  
 

 The proposed rate restructuring increases commercial and multi-family 
residential rates to reduce single-family residential rates (significant policy 
issue); 

 The proposed rate restructuring reduces business financial incentives to 
recycle which could negatively affect the City’s ability to meet its diversion 
mandates and goals (significant policy issue); 

 
 Cost Competitiveness/Proposed Hauler Compensation: 

 
 Proposed net compensation to MarBorg is slightly above the current level, 

and does not appear to reflect any potential savings from efficiencies created 
from serving both zones or from expected single family customers’ migration 
to less expensive curbside service; 

 The proposal takes City fees from the October 2011 rate increase that are 
retained by the City for Solid Waste Fund operations (currently $347,000 per 
year) and incorporates those funds into the rates retained by the hauler; 

 By recouping the full 2009 rate guarantee equivalent from the business 
sector, the proposal effectively discontinues the $300,000 negotiated Fiscal 
Year 2012 concession from MarBorg to account for the effect of the economic 
decline on the business sector;  

 Overall hauler compensation appears to be towards the high end of the 
observed ranges based on recent competitive results; 

 If the City were to proceed with negotiations with MarBorg, the City should 
expect to negotiate a more favorable proposal, using this current MarBorg 
proposal as a starting point for negotiations.  

 
 Diversion Commitments 

 
 The proposal does not propose increases to diversion levels, or make 

assurances for meeting the City’s current and future diversion mandates and 
goals. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Zone One Solid Waste Franchise Recommendation  
December 13, 2011 
Page 4 

 

Exclusive Negotiations Versus Competitive RFP 
 
It is difficult to predict whether the City could attract a better franchise contract through a 
competitive public RFP process than it could through further exclusive negotiations with 
MarBorg.  In an analysis of 22 competitive RFPs managed by HF&H: 
 

• Customer rates changes ranged from a 14% increase to a 41% decrease; 
• Overall the hauler’s revenues decreased in 20 of the 22 cities (90%); 
• The median rate change in the 22 RFPs was a 17% rate decrease; 
• If the median rate change were achieved just for Zone One, the resulting citywide 

rate reduction would be approximately 8.5% (17% x 50% of customers). 
 
This analysis suggests that the City could potentially do much better if it were to conduct 
a full open competitive process. 
 
However, the City has unique challenges that may limit the number and the quality of 
the competitive bids.  The City is geographically isolated from major population centers 
and there are no other significant local franchises up for renewal in near future.  Only 
Zone One, half of the City, could be included in an RFP at this time because MarBorg 
has the right to service Zone Two until 2023.   It would be expensive for an outside 
hauler to come in and set up a base of operations to service just half of the City, which 
might make it difficult for a hauler to be competitive.  The recent competitive process at 
the County showed that a major North County hauler without an existing South Coast 
base of operations (Waste Management) proposed higher rates in the South Coast than 
both MarBorg and Allied.  With Allied now out of the South Coast, a key MarBorg South 
Coast competitor has been eliminated from consideration. 
 
If the City were to proceed with a competitive RFP, it is possible that the City may 
attract a better overall proposal, either from another hauler or from MarBorg; although 
there is no assurance another proposal would be received. 
 
Key Issues For Negotiation 
 
Staff has some key concerns about the current proposal. 

• Competitive procurements generally lead to a “sharpening of the pencil” 
that leads to better overall rates for customers, yet this proposal actually 
slightly increases hauler revenues, significantly increases customer rates 
in all but the single family sector, and does not reflect expected 
efficiencies achieved through the consolidation of the two zones. 

• The solid waste fund stands to lose approximately $406,000 per year that 
is needed for operations.  This includes the loss of approximately 
$347,000 from the October fee increase, $40,000 for Looking Good Santa 
Barbara, and $19,000 in public education funding. 

• The proposal effectively discontinues MarBorg’s current concession for 
the effect of the economic downturn on the business sector. 



Council Agenda Report 
Zone One Solid Waste Franchise Recommendation  
December 13, 2011 
Page 5 

 

• Under best industry practices, we would expect to see increasing 
diversion commitments and diversion guarantees to help the City keep 
pace with increasing State Mandates, but these are not included in this 
proposal.   

• The proposed rate restructuring would reduce many of the financial 
incentives for diversion in the business and multi-unit sectors, which we 
expect would negatively affect current diversion levels. 

• The proposal provides overall single family residential rate reductions by 
increasing overall rates to businesses, and overall rates  multi-family 
residential rate payers to a lesser extent. 

 
However, these concerns and other issues could be addressed through negotiations 
should the City elect to engage in exclusive negotiations with MarBorg. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Although HF&H and staff believe that the proposal can and should be improved upon 
through further negotiations, the MarBorg proposal provides a good starting point to begin 
those negotiations.  Staff recommends, with the concurrence of the Ad Hoc Committee, 
suspending the competitive RFP procurement process and entering into a period of 
exclusive negotiations with MarBorg, subject to certain conditions.  If approved by 
Council, staff would begin negotiations with MarBorg, working closely with the Council 
Ad Hoc Committee.   
 
Staff would first enter into a preliminary written agreement for a period of exclusive 
negotiations with MarBorg, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney, which would cover 
the preconditions of negotiation.  These include the following: 

1. MarBorg’s agreement to a City option to extend the current franchise agreement 
for Zone One by one year, until June 2014, under current terms should 
negotiations not be successfully completed by June 30, 2012; 

2. MarBorg’s agreement to pay for the City’s consultant costs for the procurement 
process; and   

3. MarBorg’s agreement to provide City staff access to all available information and 
documentation relating to franchise cost and profits from the existing two franchise 
zones currently serviced by MarBorg.   
 

Assuming an agreement is reached, staff would return to Council with a resolution of intent 
to award the franchise to MarBorg which would include the full terms of the proposed 
agreement.  No sooner than 20 days later, as required by Article XIV of the City Charter, 
Council would need to hold a public hearing on the proposed franchise award.  This 
would allow the public to weigh in on any changes. It would also provide any other 
interested hauler the opportunity to comment and express interest in presenting a 
competing  proposal.  Following the public hearing, the Council could approve the 
proposed franchise agreement or decide to pursue the other alternatives. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Zone One Solid Waste Franchise Recommendation  
December 13, 2011 
Page 6 

 

ATTACHMENT: Summary of Proposal 
 
PREPARED BY: Kristy Schmidt, Employee Relations Manager 
 Matt Fore, Environmental Services Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 

Attachment – Page 1 of 4 

MARBORG 9/12/2011 PROPOSAL FOR SOLID WASTE SERVICES 
SUMMARY OF PROPOSAL 
 

Proposal Areas 

This summary focuses on the following proposal elements: 

• Service Levels 
• Collection Methods 
• Rate Restructuring 
• Customer Rates and MarBorg’s Revenue Levels 
• City Fees and Funding 
• Diversion 

 
 
1) Service Levels  

The proposed services are similar to current services, with modest modifications and 
enhancements that are consistent with modern industry practice.   

a. Would provide single family residential customers unlimited recycling (currently 96 gallons 
per week) under the basic trash service rate; 

b. Would provide single family residential customers 192 gallons of green waste per week plus 
6 extra green waste pick-ups per year (currently 32 gallons per week) under the basic trash 
service rate; 

c. Would provide single family customers with twice yearly on-call bulky item service (currently 
once per year) and unlimited white goods collection (dishwashers, refrigerators, stoves, etc.) 
free of charge; 

d. Would provide trash, recycling, and greenwaste containers to residential cart and can 
customers (currently, can customers must provide their own trash container). 

e. Would provide twice yearly on-call bulky item service and unlimited white goods collection to 
multi-family residential complexes as requested by the account holder (currently no bulky 
item service); 

f. Dumpster foodscraps collection service would be made available to multi-family residential 
customers on a subscription basis; 

g. Weekly single family and multi-family residential service would include household battery 
and cell phone collection; 

h. Single family residential and multi-family residential would be eligible for a medical sharps 
(syringe) mail-in disposal program; 

i. Single family and multi-family residents could set out extra material for the two weeks 
following Christmas at no additional charge. 

j. City departments to receive food waste service at 70 events  per year at no additional 
charge. 
 



Attachment - Page 2 of 4 
 

2) Collection Methods 

The proposal assumes continued 100% semi-automated collection service. This is a significant 
difference from the City of Goleta and the County Zone Two, where fully automated collection 
led to significant overall rate decreases. According to MarBorg, the City is not a candidate for 
fully automated service. 

3) Rate Restructuring 

MarBorg has proposed significant rate restructuring.  Because some of these proposed changes 
would implicate a significant change in Council’s established policy direction, staff expects 
Council would want to consider them more fully before implementing them. 

Single Family Residential 

• Single family residential rates would be the same for all residences, no matter how steep 
the slope and no matter how far the roll-out from the enclosure to the curb.  Customers 
with steep driveways or roll-outs of over 100 feet currently pay a premium. 

• Those single family residences electing curbside cart service would now receive a 5% 
discount.  There is currently no discount for bringing your cart to the curb. 

 

Multi-family Residential 

• In the multi-family residential sector, there would be a new minimum cart/can service 
level at a reduced cost for very small volume producers. 

• Multi-family residential dumpster service would be provided at the same rates as for 
businesses.  Currently, multi-family residential dumpster rates are lower than business 
rates. 

• Multi-family residential dumpster rental would be included in the service rates and not 
charged separately. 

• Multi-family residential incentives for recycling and greenwaste would be greatly reduced 
for cart/can service and for dumpster service with more than once weekly collection 
frequency. 

• Foodscraps would be available at a 10% discount off the price of trash for multi-family 
residential dumpster customers. 

 

Business 

• Rate incentives for business diversion would be significantly reduced.  For recyclables, 
greenwaste, and foodscraps, customers currently receive a significant discount of 
between 83%(carts) and 69%(dumpsters) off the cost of trash.  MarBorg proposes that 
this incentive be reduced to 50% off the cost of trash for recyclables. For greenwaste 
and foodscraps, the incentive would be reduced to only 10% off the price of trash.  It is 
important to note that customers would pay two to four times more than their current 
rates for these recycling services.  Trash producers, on the other hand, would benefit 
from proposed trash rate reductions. 

• Businesses would no longer receive a discount for providing their own dumpsters. 
 



Attachment - Page 3 of 4 
 

Another significant implication of the proposal is that  the rates proposed generally give single 
family rate reductions that are funded by the business sector, and the multi-family sector to a 
lesser degree. Total revenues under October 2011 rates are currently roughly split at 33.7% 
Single Family/22.7% Multi-family/43.6% Business.  Under the proposed rates assuming the 
same service levels, this would be 28.7% Single Family/ 24.4% Multi-family/ 46.9% Business. 

4) Customer Rates and MarBorg’s Revenue Levels 

On an overall basis, compared to October 2011 rates, customer billings under the proposed 
rates would increase by approximately 1%.   

• Single family residential customers would see a 14% decrease.  Decreases 
would be highest for those with long roll-outs or steep driveways, those who 
elect to take their carts to the curb, and those with significant recycling and 
greenwaste. 

• There would be an 8% overall increase to multi-family residential customers.  
Smaller cart/can accounts would see minor decreases, particularly those with 
low diversion.  The larger multi-family complexes that have dumpster 
(dumpster) service would see the greatest increases, particularly if they have 
collection more than once per week and/or significant recycling and 
greenwaste diversion.   

• Business customers would see an 8% overall increase.  Customers who 
divert a lot would see the biggest increases, with some paying two to four 
times as much for recycling, greenwaste, and foodscraps service.  Trash 
rates would be reduced. 

 

On an overall basis, compared to October 2011, MarBorg’s proposed rate revenue after 
deducting City fees would increase by approximately 2%, however after accounting for changes 
in services and City fees, MarBorg’s proposed revenue would increase by approximately 1%.    

Because MarBorg has proposed rates that would not include a July 2012 collection cost CPI 
increase that it would be entitled to under the current agreements, by July 2012 MarBorg likely 
would be earning closer to the same net revenue as under the current agreement. 

5) City Fees and Funding 

MarBorg’s proposal assumes that the City would no longer need the fee increase from October 
2011, because the business rate guarantee to MarBorg would be eliminated.  What MarBorg did 
not know at the time of the proposal was that the fee increase in October also covered the loss 
of funds from other sources, such as the franchise fee and recycling revenues.  Under 
MarBorg’s proposal, in addition to the $229,000 in excess of business revenues currently being 
paid to MarBorg under the rate guarantee, approximately $347,000 in business sector revenue 
from the October 2011 rate increase that is currently retained by the City to fund City operations 
would now go to MarBorg.   

Also notable is that the fees proposed by MarBorg would generate enough business sector 
revenue to fully restore the November 2009 rate guarantee level of revenue. In the current fiscal 



Attachment - Page 4 of 4 
 

year, MarBorg agreed to accept a concession of approximately $300,000 out of that rate 
guarantee in recognition of the effect of the economic downturn on business sector revenues 
versus the rate changes implemented by the City.  

(Note: estimates are based on annualized values, actual values may differ slightly due to 
monthly service variation) 

MarBorg has proposed decreased funding to support the Looking Good Santa Barbara program 
(reduced by $40,000 per year) and the City’s public education efforts (reduced by approximately 
$19,000 per year).   

MarBorg has also proposed reduced service to the City’s Annex yard, requiring that more 
materials be delivered to the MarBorg C&D facility by the City for processing instead. 

Diversion 

Though not included in the proposal, MarBorg clarified to HF&H that it estimated a diversion 
rate of 41% under the new franchise agreement.  This would be virtually no net increase in 
franchise diversion from current levels, as 40% diversion was reported in CY 2010. 

 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  540.08 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: December 13, 2011 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Annual Water Supply Management Report 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council approve and adopt the City of Santa Barbara’s Water Supply Management 
Report for the 2011 water year, finding that groundwater resources are in long-term 
balance in accordance with the conjunctive management element of the City’s Long-Term 
Water Supply Plan.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Water Supply Management Report (WSMR) is an annual report summarizing 
activities of the past water year (October 1, 2010 through September 30, 2011).  The 
report fulfills a mitigation requirement for the Coastal Branch of the State Water Project 
that water supplies be managed to prevent long-term overdraft of local groundwater.  
City staff also uses the report to inform Council and the public about recent activities 
and current water supply conditions.  Key issues of the report are summarized below. 
 
• On June 14, 2011, Council adopted an updated Long-Term Water Supply Plan 

(LTWSP) based on a number of technical analyses and an extensive collaboration 
between staff and the Water Commission.  An update of the City’s State-mandated 
Urban Water Management Plan was also completed.  The LTWSP will provide policy 
direction for management of the City’s water supplies for the twenty-year period 
through 2030.  Implementation efforts include: 
 
o Management of  water supplies for: 

 A water supply target of 15,400 AFY, based on 14,000 AFY of projected 
demand, plus 10% safety margin; 

 A projected six-year “critical drought period” (compared to five years under 
the previous plan); and  

 Planned demand reductions of up to 15% to cost effectively manage the 
City’s response to a critical drought. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Annual Water Supply Management Report 
December 13, 2011 
Page 2 

 

o Initiation of a sediment management assessment at Gibraltar and Cachuma; 
o Identification of 300 AFY of new recycled water demand, and development of 

a plan to eliminate use of potable water for blending; 
o Groundwater modeling to allow optimized use of safe yield and control of 

seawater intrusion; and development of a formal Groundwater Management 
Plan; 

o Procurement of a Federal contract to allow storage of Gibraltar water in Lake 
Cachuma pursuant to the Pass Through Agreement; 

o Implementation of cost effective opportunities to bank part of the City’s State 
Water for use during dry periods; 

o Development of an emergency response plan to respond to potential 
catastrophic interruption of supplies from the Santa Ynez River; 

o Development of new water conservation measures identified in the LTWSP in 
order to meet the State’s water use reduction mandate; 

o Modification of water accounting procedures to reflect State definitions of 
“Gross Water Use” as the basis for measuring water use reductions. 

 
Current Water Supply Status 
 
• Lake Cachuma ended the year at 97% of capacity.  Carryover water in the amount 

of 5,789 acre-feet (AF) has been preserved in the City’s account for future use.   As 
the City’s largest water supply source, Lake Cachuma is the most important indicator 
of the City’s water supply status.  The current level of storage indicates there is no 
immediate concern about local water shortage, but our water supply is always 
managed with the idea that any year may be the first year of a major drought. 

 
• Groundwater resources are in balance and long-term groundwater production does 

not exceed perennial basin yield. 
 
• Siltation related to the 2007 Zaca Fire continues to cause increased water treatment 

costs and significant siltation of Gibraltar Reservoir and is the impetus for our work 
on initiating the “pass through” option at Gibraltar. 

 
• A major ruling by the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) on water 

rights for the Cachuma Project is still pending.  At issue is how water should be 
managed to balance the needs for water supply, while protecting fish.  An updated 
Environmental Impact Report has been completed and will likely be the subject of a 
SWRCB hearing in early 2012.  A SWRCB order is not expected before 2013. 

 
• The City’s Water Conservation Program continues to implement programs to help 

City customers save water.  The increasingly popular Smart Landscape Rebate 
Program offers rebates on pre-approved irrigation equipment and landscape 
materials for residential and commercial landscapes.  A comprehensive water 
conservation marketing plan has been developed. Free water checkups and a 
comprehensive public information program inform our customers of opportunities to 



Council Agenda Report 
Annual Water Supply Management Report 
December 13, 2011 
Page 3 

 

save water and money.  All of these elements are important for the City to meet the 
State’s mandated water use reductions known as “20% by 2020.” 

 
• Demand for the year was 13,351 AF, approximately equal to the previous year.  This 

is below the estimated normal year demand of 14,000, most likely reflecting 50% 
more rainfall than average, as well as economic factors. 

 
In summary, water supplies continue to be sufficient to meet the goals of the City’s 
updated LTWSP. 
 
The draft WSMR has been made available for public review and comment.  Council will 
be briefed at the time of our report on any feedback that has been received.  On 
November 14, 2011, the Water Commission reviewed the draft and voted to 
recommend its adoption with suggested clarifications regarding State Water usage, the 
six-year dry weather scenario, and the discussion of LTWSP response measures during 
the critical drought period.  The suggested changes have been incorporated into the 
final report. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 2011 Water Supply Management Report 
 
PREPARED BY: Rebecca Bjork, Water Resources Manager BF/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



Page 1, 2010-2011 Water Supply Management Report 

City of Santa Barbara 
   Water Supply Management Report 
   2011 Water Year (October 1, 2010 – September 30, 2011) 
   Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
   December 2011 
 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The City of Santa Barbara operates the water utility to provide water for its citizens, certain 
out-of-City areas, and visitors.  Santa Barbara is an arid area, so providing an adequate 
water supply requires careful management of water resources.  The City has a diverse 
water supply including local reservoirs (Lake Cachuma and Gibraltar Reservoir), 
groundwater, State Water, desalination, and recycled water.  The City also considers water 
conservation an important tool for balancing water supply and demand.  The City's current 
Long-Term Water Supply Plan (LTWSP) was adopted by City Council on June 14, 2011.  
 
This annual report summarizes the following information: 
 

 Key issues from the recently updated Long-Term Water Supply Plan 
 The status of water supplies at the end of the water year (September 30, 2011)  
 Water conservation and demand 
 Drought outlook 
 Major capital projects that affect the City’s ability to provide safe clean water  
 Significant issues that affect the security and reliability of the City’s water supplies 

 
Appendix A provides supplemental detail.  Additional information about the City's water 
supply can be found on-line at:  www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov/water 
 
On November 14, 2011, the Water Commission reviewed and commented upon this report 
and voted to recommend approval by the City Council.  
 
WATER SUPPLIES 
 
The City has developed five different 
water supplies: local surface water; 
local groundwater (which includes 
water that seeps into Mission Tunnel); 
State Water; desalinated seawater; and 
recycled water.  Typically, most of the 
City’s demand is met by local surface 
water reservoirs and recycled water, 
augmented as necessary by local 
groundwater and State Water.  The 
City’s desalination facility is currently 
off-line. 
 

ATTACHMENT

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Figure 1.  10‐Year Rainfall History at Gibraltar (inches/year)

Long -Term
Average:

28.86"



Page 2, 2010-2011 Water Supply Management Report 

The City’s local surface water comes from Gibraltar Reservoir and Lake Cachuma, both of 
which are located in the upper Santa Ynez River watershed.  The inflow to these reservoirs 
is rainwater, so rainfall data for Gibraltar Reservoir is important for water supply 
management purposes.  Figure 1 shows rainfall for the past ten years as compared to the 
52-year average.  Additional historic rainfall information is included in Appendix A.  Runoff 
generated by average rainfall is generally enough to fill Gibraltar; however, it typically 
takes above-average rainfall to produce any significant inflow to Cachuma.  Rainfall during 
the past year was 46% above average, more than enough to fill Lake Cachuma.  To 
enhance rainfall, the City participates in the cloud seeding program administered by the 
County of Santa Barbara.   However, the program has been limited in recent years due to 
concern about potential erosion of burn areas. 
 
Table1, below, summarizes the status of the City’s various water supplies at the end of the 
2010-2011 water year. 
 
 

Table 1.  End of Year Status of City Water Supplies* 
Lake 
Cachuma 

Total Capacity:   186,636 AF  (2008 survey for 750’ elevation) 
End of Year Storage:   180,986 AF 
Percent of Total Capacity:       97% 
The City’s share of the Cachuma Project normal annual deliveries is 8,277 AF.  Actual 
use was 8,911 AF.  Remaining 2011 entitlement in the amount of 5,788 AF has been 
carried over to the current year. 

Gibraltar 
Reservoir 

Total Capacity:   5,251 AF  (2010 survey) 
End of Year Storage:   3,084 AF 
Percent of Total Capacity:       59% 
Gibraltar Reservoir typically fills and spills about two out of every three years.  
Deliveries over the past ten years have averaged 2,932 AFY.  Deliveries in 2011 were 
1,987 AF. 

Mission 
Tunnel 

Groundwater that seeps into Mission Tunnel is an important part of the City’s water 
supply, providing 1,342 AF in 2011, about 17% above the long-term average. 

Groundwater Groundwater levels remain high in the downtown storage basin, since pumping has 
been less than the annual recharge rate during the past decade.  Levels in the upper 
State Street area have been lower than normal due to additional use of groundwater to 
meet water quality requirements.  Four of nine production wells are currently available 
for use.  The City used 506 AF of groundwater during 2011. 

State Water 
Project 
(SWP) 

The City has a 3,000 AF entitlement, plus 300 AF drought buffer.  The Coastal Branch 
and Santa Ynez Extension of the SWP are in place to deliver the City’s SWP water into 
Lake Cachuma, subject to availability of water supplies. The City used 750 AF of State 
Water in 2011, all of it exchanged with Sana Ynez River Water Conservation District, 
Improvement District No. 1 pursuant to our obligation under the Exchange Agreement.  

Desalination The desalination plant remains in long-term storage mode and no water was produced 
this year.  Staff projects no need for desalinated water within at least the next 5 years.   

Recycled 
Water 

The City’s recycled water system serves parks, schools, golf courses, other large 
landscaped areas, and some public restrooms.  The system provides approximately 5% 
of the total water demand.  Customer demand was 648 AF in 2011, not including 
process water at El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant.  In recent years, recycled 
water has included a significant fraction of potable water for blending to meet water 
quality standards and reduce mineral content.  A review of secondary treatment 
modifications has identified modifications to improve water quality. 

*The Water year runs from October 1 through September 30. All data above is as of September 30, 2011 
 



Page 3, 2010-2011 Water Supply Management Report 

CITY WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM 
 
The City depends on water conservation as a part of its water supply plan. The City's 
current Water Conservation Program is a combination of the City's commitment to carry 
out the California Urban Water Conservation Council's (CUWCC) Best Management 
Practices, compliance with the States’ per capita water use targets, and dedication to 
water conservation as an element of the recently updated LTWSP.  Highlights of the City’s 
Water Conservation Program include the following activities: 
 
 

 Smart Landscape Rebate Program:  50% rebate on  eligible, pre-approved material 
costs for landscape water efficiency; 

 
 Free residential and commercial water check-ups (558 completed this year); 

 
 Smart Rebates Program administered by the California Urban Water Conservation 

Council (CUWCC), providing incentives for non-landscape measures; 
 

 “Garden Wise Guys” television show on Water Wise gardening; 
 

 City’s web site  at www.savewatersb.org; 
 

 Water education program reaching approximately 2,000 K-12th grade students per 
year; and 
 

 Targeted billing system analysis to reach customers with particularly high water 
usage. 

 
 
 
MONITORING OF WATER SUPPLY AND DEMAND 
 
Water demand has traditionally been measured by total water system production, because 
water is produced to meet the customer demand.  This includes both potable and recycled 
water.  New State requirements for water conservation have established a “20% by 2020” 
target based on what is called “Gross Water Use.”  The definition includes all potable water 
used within the service area, except for agricultural deliveries and groundwater recharge.  
It does not include recycled water use, except for the potable water blending component.  
Since the production numbers provide historical context on our demand, and the Gross 
Water Use is the new mandatory metric, both are expected to be tracked.  Figure 2A 
illustrates the traditional historical tracking of water system demand.  Figure 2B shows the 
recent history and 20-year projection of Gross Water Use and Per Capita Daily Water Use, 
calculated in accordance with State requirements for meeting the “20 x 2020” conservation 
mandate. 
 
 



Page 4, 2010-2011 Water Supply Management Report 

 
 

 
 
 
Total system water production for the 2010-2011 water year was 13,351 AF.  This is below 
the estimated normal year water demand of 14,000 AFY, reflecting somewhat above 
average rainfall for the year, following three years of below average rainfall, including 
extraordinarily dry weather in 2007.  The lower demand may also reflect the poor 
economic situation. 
 



Page 5, 2010-2011 Water Supply Management Report 

DROUGHT OUTLOOK 
 
Because the City depends heavily on local surface water, drought is the situation most likely 
to reduce our available water supplies.  Lake Cachuma is our primary source of surface 
water and its storage level is the most important indicator of potential near-term drought 
impacts.    Figure 3 shows a recent history of storage levels at Lake Cachuma.  The severe 
drought period of 1987-1993 is also shown for comparison to the less severe dry period of 
2002 through 2004.  Cachuma members normally begin to take voluntary reductions in 
deliveries when the reservoir storage drops below 100,000 AF as a way of stretching 
supplies in case drought continues. 
 

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Water Year

Historical Storage Volumes

1987-1993 Period

Recent History of Lake Cachuma Storage Levels (AF)
With 1987-1993 Period Shown for Comparison

Figure 3 
 

 
Under the new LTWSP, the City’s water supply is planned to meet 100% of normal year 
demand in most years and no less than 85% of normal year demand during the latter portion 
of a 6-year period of below average rainfall, which defines our “critical drought period.”  
When rainfall is below average, there is limited inflow to Lake Cachuma and the storage 
level continues to drop.  So our management plan now assumes the first year after a spill at 
Cachuma may be the first year of a 6-year critical drought period.   Figure 4 shows a 
projection of how we would expect to meet a current normal year demand of 14,000 AFY 
over such a 6-year period beginning with the current (2012) water year and assuming 
continued below average rainfall and minimal inflow to Lake Cachuma.  The figure shows 
Cachuma carryover and increased groundwater pumping to offset reductions in surface 
water availability as the drought progresses.  The projection shows planned reductions in 
demand of 15% and 9% for the fifth and sixth years respectively, which is consistent with the 
planned reduction policy in the LTWSP for a critical drought period. 
 



Page 6, 2010-2011 Water Supply Management Report 

 
 
 
CAPITAL PROJECTS  
 
Staff continues work on a number of projects to improve the reliability and quality of City 
water supplies:  
 
 Ortega Groundwater Treatment Plant:  A comprehensive process to identify the 

optimal treatment scheme was conducted, and a contract for rehabilitation and upgrade 
of the plant has been awarded, with construction expected to begin early in 2012.  The 
project goal is to maintain availability of an important part of the City’s water supply to 
provide back-up for depleted surface water supplies during drought, meet peak 
demands, and serve as an emergency water supply in the event of catastrophic supply 
interruptions. 

 
 Advanced Water Treatment Project:  The project to add ozone treatment facilities at 

the Cater Water Treatment Plant is underway.  A low-interest State Revolving Fund 
loan has been approved to fund this project as well as the groundwater treatment 
improvements, well rehabilitation, and distribution system improvements at Reservoir 
No. 1.  These improvements will facilitate distribution of water from low elevations to 
higher zones as would be necessary during catastrophic water supply interruptions.  
The ozone project is expected to allow the City to more reliably meet pending water 
quality regulations. 

 
 Recycled Water Treatment Plant Rehabilitation:  Funding has been appropriated to 

rehabilitate the recycled water filters. Design of this project will commence now that a 
secondary treatment process upgrade has been identified to better treat the 
wastewater to achieve readily filterable water.  

 

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

Year 1
(2012)

Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6

Figure 4.  6-Year Dry Weather Water Supply Projection (AF)
Assumes Below Average Rainfall; 15% Acceptable Demand Reductions

Drought Supplies

Groundwater

State Water

Gibraltar/Mission 
Tunnel/MWD

Cachuma 
Carryover

Cachuma

Recycled Water



Page 7, 2010-2011 Water Supply Management Report 

WATER SUPPLY ISSUES 
 
There are a number of significant issues related to the City’s water supplies, discussed 
briefly below.   
 
Long-Term Water Supply Program Update:  An important accomplishment during 2011 
was the Council’s adoption of the updated LTWSP.  This was the product of numerous 
technical studies and a year-long collaboration between staff and the Water Commission 
to appropriately quantify our water supplies and then develop policies that will guide our 
water supply management of the next twenty years.  Following is a summary of some key 
issues not already addressed above: 
 

 Water Supply Target:  A water supply target of 15,400 AFY was adopted, based on 
estimated normal year demand of 14,000 AFY, plus a 10% safety margin.  Given 
the State mandate for water conservation, this target amount can be expected to be 
applicable throughout the 20-year period of the plan, as demand from new 
development is offset by increasing efficiency and use of recycled water.   
 

 Conservation Program:  Based on a comprehensive model of our Water 
Conservation Program, we have identified the cost effective measures that will play 
a major role in meeting the State mandate.  Some are ongoing parts of our current 
program; others are new, and are being researched for the most effective method of 
implementation.   A survey of City customers has been conducted and a strategic 
and tactical marketing plan has been developed, with implementation slated for 
kick-off in 2012.  We are evaluating the impact of new State plumbing codes on our 
efficiency goal with respect to savings potential from new requirements for high 
efficiency toilets, urinals, showerheads, and faucets. 
 

 Recycled Water:  The new plan includes adding 300 AFY of new demand on the 
recycled water system to offset expensive potable supplies and developing a plan to 
phase out the use of potable water for blending to meet water quality targets. 
 

 Drought Response Measures:  The new plan is based on 100% deliveries in most 
years and identifies extraordinary demand reductions of up to 15% as part of our 
response to the occasional critical drought period.  This is up from 10% under the 
previous plan, but significantly less than the 50% reductions being sought during 
1991.  We now plan for a six-year critical drought period, compared to five years 
previously, to reflect the uncertainty of water supplies and the potential impacts of 
climate change.  The desalination plant remains a part of our water supply for use in 
catastrophic drought. However, the plan includes identifying more cost effective 
alternative drought supplies, including water banking and purchase of non-project 
water through the State Water Project, for the critical drought period.  A contract for 
banked storage has been developed by CCWA, by which members can store 
surplus carryover water in a Central Valley groundwater basin for delivery up to ten 
years later for use during drought. 

 
 Sedimentation Management:  Reservoirs in our area are subject to ongoing loss of 

volume and yield as a result of sedimentation.  The plan calls for a long-term 
strategy to cost effectively manage sedimentation at Gibraltar Reservoir and, in 



Page 8, 2010-2011 Water Supply Management Report 

conjunction with appropriate State and Federal agencies and other project 
members, at Lake Cachuma as well.    

 
The updated plan is available to the public on the City’s website at the following address: 

http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/Resident/Water/Rates/Documents.htm 
 
 
Cachuma Project Water Rights Hearing:  The Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) and 
the members of the Cachuma Project continue to await a decision by the State Water 
Resources Control Board (SWRCB) following a major hearing on the Cachuma Project’s 
water rights completed in November 2003.  This was a continuation of SWRCB’s long-
standing review of the Cachuma Project operations in terms of its effects on downstream 
water users and on public trust resources (steelhead trout).  A December 2002 settlement 
agreement resolved a number of issues among several of the participants in the hearing, 
and is under consideration by the SWRCB.  The SWRCB ruling has been repeatedly 
delayed pending completion of the necessary environmental documents.  After several 
drafts, the Final EIR for Cachuma operations has been completed and its release is 
expected soon, with a possible hearing to follow in early 2012. While this would be an 
important milestone, it is likely to be another year before a final decision is issued.  The 
SWRCB decision is important to the City because it could affect the amount of water 
available from Cachuma for water supply purposes.   
 
Gibraltar Pass Through Operations:  The Zaca Fire burned approximately 60% of the 
Gibraltar Reservoir watershed, normally the source of about 35% of the City’s water 
supply.  On top of historical siltation, the reservoir’s storage capacity has now been 
reduced by an additional 1,535 AF, leaving a storage volume of 5,250 AF.  In 1989, the 
City entered into the Upper Santa Ynez River Operations Agreement (the “Pass Through 
Agreement”) with other members of the Cachuma Project.  The City agreed to defer its 
planned enlargement of Gibraltar Reservoir in exchange for provisions that would allow the 
City to “pass through” a portion of its Gibraltar water to Lake Cachuma for delivery through 
Cachuma Project facilities.  The City has elected to commence this phase of operations 
and is working with the Reclamation to negotiate a “Warren Act” contract, as required by 
federal law to allow such use of the Cachuma Project.  Modeling work to assess the effects 
of Pass Through operations has been completed.  A draft technical memorandum is being 
finalized for use during environmental review.  The Pass Through option will allow the City 
to stabilize its Gibraltar deliveries as the reservoir continues to silt in. 
 
State Water Project/Delta Issues:  The Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta is a critical 
conveyance link for all water moved to the south by the State Water Project.  There is 
substantial debate about the relative importance of water supply and environmental 
benefits in regard to how the Delta is managed.  The current approach is that these two 
co-equal goals need to be acknowledged as a part of any solution. 
 
Delivery allocations are forecasted as a percentage of each member’s maximum delivery 
amount (referred to as “Table A” amount).   Beginning in 2007, a number of federal court 
decisions impacted diversions from the Delta, meaning a reduction in the delivery 
allocations for State Project members. At the same time, the state was experiencing a 
prolonged dry period.  More recently, there has been some easing of those restrictions and 
State Water supplies are also more plentiful due to a very wet year in 2011, during which 



Page 9, 2010-2011 Water Supply Management Report 

80% of Table A amounts were available.  The City relies on State Water to a limited extent, 
but it can be an important source of water for banking as a part of increasing the reliability 
of our water supply. 
  



Page 10, 2010-2011 Water Supply Management Report 

 
 

Appendix A – Supplemental Water Supply Information 
 
Groundwater Balance 
 
Project conditions of the State Water Project (SWP) require the City to use SWP water to offset 
any demonstrated groundwater basin overdraft.  Under the LTWSP, the City uses groundwater 
conjunctively with surface supplies, such that significant groundwater use only occurs when 
surface supplies are reduced.  Basins are rested following periods of heavy pumping to allow water 
levels to recover.  As summarized in Table A-1, the perennial yield exceeds average annual 
pumping and groundwater basins are in long-term balance with no overdraft projected.  More 
detailed analysis is available in the LTWSP. 

Table A-1.  Groundwater Balance 
Estimated Perennial Groundwater Yield of 3 Groundwater Storage Units: 1,900 AFY
Approximate Pumping by Private Pumpers: -500 AFY
Net Perennial Yield Available to the City: 1,400 AFY
Average projected City groundwater pumping under LTWSP at target supply 
of 15,400 AFY: 1,083 AFY
Groundwater Production in 2010-2011: 506 AF

 
 
Projection of Supply Availability 
 
Table A-2 summarizes the City's water supply sources and fulfills a requirement of the project 
conditions for the SWP.  The projected 2011-2012 Supply Plan reflects a projected total demand of 
14,000 AF. 

 
 

Table A-2.   Sources of Supply (AF) 
 

Source of Supply 
WY 2011 

Original Plan 
WY 2011 
Actual 

WY 2012 Supply 
Plan 

Projected 
Gibraltar Reservoir 3,413 1,987 3,412 
Cachuma Project 6,732 8,911 7,039 
Mission Tunnel 1,200 1,342 1,100 
Devil's Canyon (w/ Gibraltar) 184 (w/ Gibraltar) 
Juncal Res. (300 AF from MWD) (w/ Cachuma) (w/ Cachuma) (w/ Cachuma) 
State Water Project 650 750 650 
Groundwater 1,206 506 999 
Desalination 0 0 0 
Recycled Water 800 648 800 
Net Other Supplies1 (na) -977 (na) 

Total Production: 14,000 13,351 14,000 
Total Demand: 14,000 13,351 14,000 

Percent Shortage: 0 0 0 
       1 Represents miscellaneous production sources (positive values) and water used from the distribution 

system for purposes such as transfers to adjacent water purveyors, groundwater recharge, or 
blending with recycled water (negative values). 

 



Page 11, 2010-2011 Water Supply Management Report 

Long-Term Rainfall Data 
 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Water Year

Annual Rainfall (inches)

Average

Rainfall at Gibraltar Reservoir by Water Year

 
 



Agenda Item No.   
File Code No. 140.05  

 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: December 13, 2011 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Clerk’s Office, Administrative Services Department 
 
SUBJECT: Appointments To City Advisory Groups 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council make appointments to the City advisory groups. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Currently, there are 61 positions available for appointment to various City advisory groups.  
On November 1, November 15, and November 22, 2011, the Council interviewed 
applicants for these positions.   
 
The Guidelines for the City of Santa Barbara Advisory Groups, Resolution No. 06-092, 
states that applicants are required to appear for an interview before the City Council.  The 
names of applicants failing to appear for an interview are removed from the list of persons 
eligible for appointment.  A list of applicants eligible for appointment is attached.  With the 
exception of the Housing Authority Commission, appointments to the advisory groups will 
be effective January 1, 2012.  The appointment to the Housing Authority Commission will 
be effective on February 16, 2012. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: List of Eligible Applicants 
 
PREPARED BY: Cynthia M. Rodriguez, City Clerk Services Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Marcelo A. López, Administrative Services Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



1 
 

ACCESS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

• Four vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2014. 
• Residents of the City or a full-time employees of an entity doing business within the City who demonstrate an 

interest, experience, and commitment to issues pertaining to disability and access and who represent the public at 
large: 

 Two members from the Architectural/Engineering/Building Community; and 
 Two members from the Disability Community. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Architectural/ 
Engineering/Building 
Communities (2) 
 

None    

Disability Community (2) Robert Burnham 6/28/11 
(6 months) 

  

Ken McLellan 12/15/09 
(2 years) 

  

Scott Smigel    

 



2 
 

ARCHITECTURAL BOARD OF REVIEW 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City or the County of Santa Barbara; any of the following: 

 Licensed architect; 
 Member who possess professional experience in related fields including, but not limited to, landscape 

architecture, building design, structural engineering or industrial design; or 
 Public at large. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Licensed Architect/ 
Professional 
Qualifications/ 
Public at Large (2) 
 

Travis B. Colburn  1) Architectural Board of Review; 
2) Planning Commission 

Architect; Qualified Elector - City 

Kirk B. Gradin   Architect; Qualified Elector - City 

Robert Kupiec   Architect; Qualified Elector - 
County 

Kevin Moore   Architect; Qualified Elector - City 

Stephanie Poole   Architect; Qualified Elector – City 

Barry Winick  1) Historic Landmarks Commission; 
2) Architectural Board of Review 

Architect; Qualified Elector - City 

 
 

 



 

3 
 

ARTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

• Three vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Persons with acknowledged accomplishments in the arts and who demonstrate an interest in and commitment to 

cultural and arts activities. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified 
Electors (3) 
 

Darian Bleecher 6/22/04 & 12/18/07 
(7 years, 6 months) 

  

Charmaine Curtis Jacobs  1) Historic Landmarks; 
2) Parks and Recreation; & 
3) Arts Advisory Committee 

Current Planning 
Commissioner; term expires 
12/31/11 

Linda Saccoccio    

Carol M. Taylor    

Thea Vandervoort    

Nathan Vonk    

 



4 
 

BUILDING AND FIRE CODE BOARD OF APPEALS 

• One vacancy. 
• Open term. 
• Resident of the City or adjoining unincorporated areas of Santa Barbara County. 
• Appointee shall demonstrate knowledge and expertise in specialty areas governed by the construction and fire 

codes of the City. 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Resident of the City or 
unincorporated area 
of Santa Barbara 
County (1) 
 

None    

 



5 
 

CENTRAL COAST COMMISSION FOR SENIOR CITIZENS 
 

• One vacancy. 
• Term expires 6/30/2013. 
• Resident of the City. 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Resident of the City (1) None    

 
 



6 
 

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government and, for 1 year after ceasing to be 

a member, may not be eligible for any salaried office or employment with the City. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Electors (2) Alan T. Kasehagen  11/25/03 & 12/18/07 
(8 years) 

  

Donna Lewis 6/28/05 & 12/18/07 
(8 years) 

  



7 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 

• Five vacancies. 
• One term expires 12/31/2013; one term expires 12/31/2014; and three terms expire 12/31/2015 
• Residents or employees within the City but need not be qualified electors of the City. 
• One representative from each: 

 Eastside Neighborhood  Housing Interests  Human Services Agencies 
 Senior Community  Youth Oriented Services  

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Eastside 
Neighborhood (1) 

Veronica Loza 7/3/07 & 12/18/07 
(4 years, 6 months) 

  

Housing Interests (1) None    

Human Services 
Agencies (1) 

None   Also eligible for the Youth 
Oriented Services 
category 

Senior Community (1) None    

Youth Oriented 
Services (1) 

Daniel Ramirez 6/30/09 
(2 years, 6 months) 

1) Community Development & 
Human Services  
Committee; 

2) Planning Commission 

 

 
 



8 
 

COMMUNITY EVENTS & FESTIVALS COMMITTEE 
 

• Six vacancies. 
• Two terms expire 12/31/2014; and four terms expire 12/31/2015. 

 Three representatives of the Business/Lodging/Retail Industry; 
 One representative of the Cultural Arts; and 
 Two residents of the City who represent the public at large (one of whom shall not represent any specific 

group). 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Business/Lodging/Retail 
Industry (3) 

Jason McCarthy 12/13/05 & 12/18/07 
(6 years) 

 County 

Cultural Arts (1) Laura Inks   County 

Public at Large (2) Kate Schwab   City 

 
 
 



9 
 

CREEKS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

• Four vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Residents of the City of Santa Barbara: 

 One representative from the Hotel/Lodging Industry; and 
 Three members with experience in ocean use (e.g., recreational user or commercial fisherman, etc.), 

business, environmental issues and/or provide community at large representation. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Hotel/Lodging Industry (1) Paul Bullock 6/30/09 
(2 years, 6 months) 

 City 

Experience in ocean use, 
business, or 
environmental issues, 
and/or represents the 
community at large (3) 

Stephen MacIntosh 6/28/11 
(6 months) 

 City 

Lee Moldaver 7/11/06 & 12/18/07 
(5 years, 6 months) 

 City 

Kathleen “Betsy” Weber 12/15/09 
(2 years) 

 City 

 



10 
 

DOWNTOWN PARKING COMMITTEE 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Residents of the City or the County of Santa Barbara who demonstrate an interest and knowledge of downtown 

parking issues. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Resident of the City or 
the County (2) 
 

William “Bill” Collyer 7/1/08 
(3 years, 6 months) 

 City 

Tom A. Williams 7/11/06 & 12/18/07 
(5 years, 6 months) 

 City 

 



11 
 

FIRE AND POLICE COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Electors (2) 
 

Jennifer Christensen 12/15/09 
(2 years) 

  

Thomas Parker    

John J. Torell    

Paul R. Zink  1) Planning Commission; 
2) Fire & Police Commission 

 

Current Architectural Board 
of Review Member; term 
expires 12/31/14 

 



12 
 

FIRE AND POLICE PENSION COMMISSION 
 

• Three vacancies. 
• One term expires 12/31/2012; one term expires 12/31/2013; and one term expires 12/31/2014. 

 One active retired police officer who need not be a resident or qualified elector of the City; and 
 Two qualified electors of the City who are not active firefighters or police officers for the City of Santa 

Barbara. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Active/Retired Police 
Officer (1) 
 

None   
 

Qualified Electors (2) 
 

None    

 



13 
 

HARBOR COMMISSION 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Electors (2) Frank Kelly 12/17/02, 11/25/03 & 
12/18/07 
(9 years) 

  

Helene Webb    

 



14 
 

HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City; any of the following: 

 Licensed Architect  Licensed Landscape Architect 
 Professional Architectural Historian  Public at large 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified elector of 
the City who is a 
licensed Architect, 
licensed Landscape 
Architect,  
Professional 
Architectural 
Historian, or public at 
large (2) 
 

Michael Drury 7/1/08 
(3 years, 6 months) 

 Public at large – Qualified 
Elector - City 

Charmaine Curtis 
Jacobs 

 1) Historic Landmarks 
Commission; 

2) Parks and Recreation 
Commission;  

3) Arts Advisory Committee 

Public at large – Qualified 
Elector - City 
(Current Planning 
Commissioner; Term expires 
12/31/11) 

Ronald Sorgman   Architect – Qualified Elector - 
City 

Barry Winick  1) Historic Landmarks 
Commission; 

2) Architectural Board of Review 

Architect – Qualified Elector - 
City 

 



15 
 

HOUSING AUTHORITY COMMISSION 

• One vacancy. 
• Term expires 2/15/2014 (Appointment effective on 2/16/12). 
• Resident of the City who is a senior tenant (age 62 or older and who is receiving housing assistance from the 

Housing Authority of the City of Santa Barbara) 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 

 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Senior Tenant (1) 
 

Victor Suhr    

 



16 
 

LIBRARY BOARD 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector (2) None    

 



17 
 

MEASURE P COMMITTEE 
 

• Six vacancies. 
• Two terms expire 12/31/2012; One term expires 12/31/2013; two terms expire 12/31/2014; and one term expires 

12/31/2015 
• Two residents of the City; and one representative from each: 

 Civil Liberties Advocate  Criminal Defense Attorney 
 Drug abuse & treatment & prevention counselor  Medical Professional 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Civil Liberties Advocate (1) None    

Criminal Defense Attorney 
(1) 

None    

Drug abuse, treatment & 
prevention counselor (1) 

None    

Medical Professional (1) None    

Residents of the City (2) None    



18 
 

NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY COUNCIL 
 

• Three vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015 
• Residents of the City who need not be qualified electors of the City. 
• Two representatives of the public at large; and one representative from any of the following neighborhoods: 

 Eastside  Lower Eastside  Laguna 
 Westside   Lower Westside  

• One appointee may be a youth member (age 16 or older). 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd 

 
Notes 

Neighborhood 
Representative (1) 

Teresa Peña 3/1/11 
(9 months) 

 Eastside Neighborhood 

Public at Large (2) Sally Kingston 3/1/11 
(9 months) 

  

 



19 
 

PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION 
 

• One vacancy.   
• Term expires 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified elector of the City, or a resident of the City and a citizen of the United States who is 16 years of age or older. 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector of 
the City, or a 
resident of the City 
and a citizen of the 
United States who is 
16 years of age or 
older (1) 

Megan Luciana Diaz   Qualified Elector 

Charmaine Curtis 
Jacobs 

 1) Historic Landmarks 
Commission; 

2) Parks & Recreation 
Commission; & 

3) Arts Advisory Committee 

Qualified Elector  

(Current Planning 
Commissioner; term 
expires 12/31/11) 

 Charles Trentacosti 6/28/11 
(6 months) 

 Qualified Elector 

 
 



20 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified 
Electors (2) 
 

William A. Anikouchine   Current Harbor Commissioner; term 
expires 12/31/11 

John P. Campanella    

Travis B. Colburn  1) Architectural Board of 
Review 

2) Planning Commission 

 

Stephen M. Cushman    

June Pujo    

Daniel Ramirez  1) Community Development & 
Human Services Committee; 

2) Planning Commission 

 

Joseph A. Rution    

Dan Secord    

Addison S. Thompson    

Paul R. Zink  1) Planning Commission; 
2) Fire & Police Commission 

 

Current Architectural Board of Review 
Member; term expires 12/31/14 



21 
 

RENTAL HOUSING MEDIATION TASK FORCE 
 

• Four vacancies. 
• One term expires 12/31/2012; and three terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Residents of the City or the County of Santa Barbara: 

 One homeowner  Two landlords  One tenant 
Note:  Non-resident members must be owners of residential rental property within the City limits or 
affiliated with organizations concerned with landlord-tenant issues within the City limits. 

• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Homeowner (1) David McDermott   City 

Landlords (2) None    

Tenant (1) David M. Brainard 6/28/11 
(6 months) 

 City 



22 
 

SINGLE FAMILY DESIGN BOARD  
 

• One vacancy. 
• Term expires 6/30/2015. 
• Resident of the City or the County who is a licensed landscape architect. 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Licensed Landscape 
Architect (1) 
 

None    

 



23 
 

WATER COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2015. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 
(1st, 2nd, 3rd) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Electors (2) 
 

Barry Keller 7/1/08 
(3 years, 6 months) 

  

 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  160.03 
 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: December 13, 2011 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Attorney’s Office 
 
SUBJECT:  Conference with Legal Counsel – Pending Litigation  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council hold a closed session to consider pending litigation pursuant to subsection 
(a) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code and take appropriate action as needed. 
 
The pending litigation is Santa Barbara Channelkeeper v. City of Santa Barbara, USDC 
Case No. CV-1103624 JHN (AGRx). 
 
SCHEDULING: 
 
Duration, 30 minutes; anytime 
 
REPORT: 
 
None anticipated 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Stephen P. Wiley, City Attorney 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 


	1.DOC
	2.DOC
	3.DOC
	4.DOC
	5.DOC
	6.DOC
	7.DOC
	8.DOC
	9.DOC
	10.DOC
	11.DOC
	12.PDF
	13.DOC
	14.DOC
	15.DOC
	16.PDF
	17.DOC
	18.DOC
	19.DOC
	20.DOC
	21.DOC
	22.DOC
	23.DOC
	24.DOC
	25.DOC
	26.DOC
	27.PDF
	28.DOC
	29.DOC
	30.DOC
	Mayor/Chair
	James L. Armstrong
	Stephen P. Wiley
	City Attorney/Agency Counsel
	Frank Hotchkiss
	Michael Self
	City Hall



	ORDER OF BUSINESS



